United States Attorneys Bulletin



Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.

VOL. 19

MAY 28, 1971

NO.11



Vol. 19

May 28, 1971

No. 11

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS		415
COMMENDATIONS		416
POINTS TO REMEMBER Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs - Commitments		417
Summary of Rules of Procedure for the Trial of Minor Offenses Before U.S. Magistrates		417
Selective Service Cases		419
Appeals and Petitions for Certiorari		420
ANTITRUST DIVISION SHERMAN ACT Ct. Rules No Abuse of Grand Jury Process After <u>In Camera</u> In- spection	U.S. v. Ross Trucking (E.D. N.Y.)	42 1
CRIMINAL DIVISION NARCOTICS AND DANGEROUS DRUGS Activities Proscribed by 21 U.S.C. 331(q)(2) and 331(q)(3) Do Not Constitute Single Offense	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Holtzman</u> (C.A. 7)	423
WHITE SLAVE TRAFFIC ACT Conviction on White Slave Traffic Act Charge Sustained. No Error in Dist. Ct.'s Quashing of Subpoenas Issued to Grand Jury for Purpose of Impeaching		

Complaining Witness' Testimony.Other Claims of Trial ErrorsRejectedU.S. v. Jenkins(C.A. 5)424



-

ст. Ст.

.

I

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION INDIANS	. -	Page
<u>Res Judicata:</u> Compromise Settle- ments; Tribal Claim Under Indian Claims Commission Act		
Barred by Prior Settlement Under Doctrine of <u>Res Judicata</u>	U.S. v. Southern Ute Indians (S. Ct.)	427
Statute of Limitations Applicable to Claims by Indians Against		430
U.S.	Capoeman v. U.S. (C. Cl.)	428
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW Dist. Ct. Will Not Interfere With an Administrative Body's Rulings on Evidence in an Action Brought While Adminis- trative Hearing Remains in Progress	Lloyd Harbor Study Group, Inc. v. Seaborg, et al. (E. D. N. Y.)	429
ENVIRONMENT		
Qui Tam Action for Recovery of		
Fines Not Authorized by Rivers and Harbors Act	U.S., et al. v. <u>Fla.</u> - <u>Vanderbilt Corp.</u> (S.D. Fla.)	430
TAX DIVISION SUMMONS ENFORCEMENT PRO- CEEDINGS		
Ct. Holds Summary Show Cause Procedures Proper to Enforce Summonses; Taxpayer Under Investigation Precluded from Intervening, Participating in		
any Way at any Stage of Sum- mons Process Against Third Party Summoned by IRS to Testify or Produce Records	U.S. & Special Agent Bittman v. Newman (C.A. 5)	433
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE RULE 7: The Indictment and the		
Information (c) Nature and Contents	$\frac{U.S. v. Zolli \& Winchell}{(E.D. N.Y.)}$	435

And the second second

÷.''

II

		Page
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL		
PROCEDURE (CONTD.)		
RULE 8: Joinder of Offenses and	U.S. v. Weber (C.A. 3)	437
of Defendants		
(a) Joinder of Offenses	U.S. v. Zolli & Winchell	
	(E.D. N.Y.)	439
RULE 11: Pleas	U.S. v. Vermeulen	441
	(C.A. 2)	441
RULE 12: Pleadings and Motions		
before Trial; Defenses and Ob-		
jections		
(b) The Motion Raising		
(2) Defenses and Objection	ns	
Which Must be	U.S. v. Zolli & Winchell	
Raised	$\frac{U.S. v. Zolli \& Winchell}{(E.D. N.Y.)}$	443
	•	
RULE 13: Trial Together of		
Indictments or Informations	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Weber</u> (C.A. 3)	446
RULE 14: Relief from Prejudicial		447
Joinder	$\underline{U.S.} v. \underline{Weber} (C.A. 3)$	44 (
RULE 35: Correction or Reduction		
of Sentence	Seigel v. U.S. (C.A. 2)	449
of Sentence		-
RULE 41: Search and Seizure		
(e) Motion for Return of		
Property and to Suppress		
Evidence	U.S. v. Decker (W.D. Mo.)	451

LEGISLATIVE NOTES



the second

•

 \mathbf{III}

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS Philip H. Modlin, Director

...

*

N.

•

and the second second

On March 9, 1971, the United States became a party to the Interstate Agreement on Detainers. This Agreement affords a means of disposing of detainers which are based upon pending charges. The Bureau of Prisons, in conjunction with the Criminal Division, is preparing a set of procedures pursuant to which it will monitor requests for action by state prisoners detained on Federal charges and United States Attorneys will be able to produce state prisoners for trial if such be necessary or desirable. These procedures will be available shortly.

*

415

*

COMMENDATIONS

Assistant U.S. Attorneys Leonard Campbell and W. A. Spurgeon (D. Colo.) were commended by Chief Postal Inspector Cotter for their successful prosecution involving promoters using the referral selling plan to sell overpriced vacuum cleaners.

U.S. Attorney William H. Stafford, Jr. (N.D. Fla.) was commended by FBI Director J. Edgar Hoover for "his outstanding professional skill" and for the successful prosecutions of the individuals involved in the burglary of the Florida First National Bank at Brent.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Alan W. Peryam (C.D. Calif.) was commended by State Director Carlos C. Ogden, Selective Service System, "for the high standard of professional competence and vigor with which he successfully handled the case of U.S. ex nel Wm. Sandstedt v. Stanley R. Resor.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Barry Kerchner (E.D. Pa.) was commended by Special Agent in Charge, Philadelphia, stating that "It was only through the painstaking hours of review and studying of the cases related to these subjects /major thefts from interstate shipments/ by Assistant U.S. Attorney Barry Kerchner that these successful results were achieved due to the complicated and involved nature of these types of cases".

Assistant U.S. Attorney Rodney Sager (E.D. Va.) was commended by General Counsel David A. Nelson, Post Office Department, for his successful prosecution and presentation of the Postal Service's position to a court which had indicated from the outset that its sympathies were with the plaintiff.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Rudy Hernandez (M.D. Fla.) was commended by FBI Director J. Edgar Hoover for his skillful handling, detailed preparation and outstanding presentation of the prosecution of Carl Edward North, et al.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Francis S. Brocato (D. Md.) was commended by Special Agent in Charge, Washington, D.C., stating "that it took not only legal expertise and the highest degree of competency as a prosecutor but also personal courage and professional dedication to present this case effectively". The case involved the prosecution of a known, key figure in the criminal world.

*

*

*

and the second second

POINTS TO REMEMBER

Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs -Commitments Pursuant to Titles I and III of Narcotic Addict Rehabilitation Act Commencing June 1, 1971

The phased closing of the U.S. Public Health Service facility at Ft. Worth, Texas, which presently handles commitments pursuant to Titles I and III of the Narcotic Addict Rehabilitation Act of 1966 from west of the Mississippi, will begin on June 1, 1971. Patients committed pursuant to Titles I and III of NARA after that date will be sent either to the U.S. Public Health Service Facility at Lexington, Kentucky, or to designated local facilities. United States Attorneys in affected districts will shortly receive notification from the National Institute of Mental Health as to the effective date of this change for their districts and also as to where their Title I and III patients will be sent. Please be alert for this notification.

(Criminal Division)

Summary of Rules of Procedure for the Trial of Minor Offenses Before U.S. Magistrates

The Supreme Court has prescribed new "Rules of Procedure for the Trial of Minor Offenses Before United States Magistrates" under 18 U.S.C. 3401, effective January 27, 1971. The following is a brief summary of those rules.

A trial of a minor offense other than a petty offense may proceed on a complaint or on an information referred to a magistrate by the district court. Upon the defendant's initial appearance he must be informed by the magistrate of the nature of the complaint or information and of any affidavit; of his right to counsel or appointed counsel if he is unable to obtain his own; of his right to pretrial release, if any; of his right to trial before a district court judge and jury; and in the case of a trial begun by complaint, of his right to a preliminary examination before the magistrate if trial in the district court is elected. As a requisite to a trial by the magistrate, the defendant must sign a written consent to such trial which specifically waives trial before a district court judge and jury. If the defendant pleads not guilty or, with the magistrate's consent, nolo contendere, the magistrate must proceed in accordance with the requirements of Rule 11, **F.R.Cr.P.** If a plea of not guilty is entered, the magistrate must conduct or fix a reasonable time for conducting the trial. The trial must be conducted as is a criminal trial by a district judge without a jury, and must be recorded either by a reporter or by sound recording equipment. To the extent that pretrial and trial procedure and practice are not specifically covered, the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure apply.

A trial of a petty offense may proceed on an information, complaint, citation, or violation notice. The defendant must be informed by the magistrate of the charge and of his rights to counsel and to trial in the district court. The rules regarding waiver, pleading, and the setting of time for the trial are the same as those for other minor offenses. The trial is to be conducted as is a petty offense trial by a district judge without a jury, and must be recorded by a reporter or by sound recording equipment unless the keeping of a verbatim record is waived by the defendant.

Failure of a defendant to respond to a citation or violation notice establishing probable cause may result in the issuance of a summons or warrant for his arrest; failure to appear when summoned or otherwise ordered may result in the issuance of a warrant for his immediate arrest and appearance.

The Government may appeal to the district court for a rehearing <u>de novo</u> any decision or order of the magistrate which would have been appealable to a Court of Appeals if made by a district judge. Proceedings before the magistrate must remain in abeyance pending resolution of such appeal.

Cases transferred under Rule 20, F.R.Cr.P., which concern minor offenses other than petty offenses may be referred to a magistrate for plea and sentence if authorized by local rules or order of the district court. A defendant charged with a petty offense who is arrested or present in a district other than that in which the change is pending against him may obtain a transfer of the case in order to plead guilty or <u>nolo contendere</u> before a magistrate in the district in which he is located.

A new trial may be granted by the magistrate if required in the interest of justice. A motion for a new trial must be made by a defendant within seven days of the judgment, or within 180 days if based on newly discovered evidence.

An appeal to the district court from a judgment of conviction by a magistrate may be taken with 10 days by filing a notice of appeal. The rules governing stay of execution, release pending appeal, and the scope of appeal are the same as those governing an appeal from a district court judgment. The defendant is not entitled to a trial <u>de novo</u> by a district court judge.

In lieu of appearance, payment by the defendant of a fixed sum may permit the termination of a petty offense case if authorized by local rules.

Supplementary local rules may be adopted by district courts.

(Criminal Division)

Selective Service Cases - U.S. Attorneys to Insure Timely and Accurate Statistical Reporting

•

Analysis of statistical information dealing with prosecutions under the Military Selective Service Act indicates the existence in various areas throughout the country of serious problems in the enforcement of the criminal provisions of the Act. The Internal Security Division desires to be of assistance to the United States Attorneys whose offices may be experiencing difficulties, for one reason or another, in effectuating prosecutions under the Act. In order to be fully aware of the problem areas and to be of assistance in such areas it is essential that we receive timely and accurate statistical reports from all United States Attorneys' offices. For this reason it is requested that each United States Attorney personally assure himself of the timeliness and accuracy of the statistical data under this Act forwarded each month by his office to the Department. It is urged particularly that each United States Attorney make certain that such data is reported to the Department not later than the fifth day following the month covered by the report.

Among the problems experienced in many districts is the difficulty in getting selective service cases set for trial. In this connection, your attention is again directed to the provision in 50 U.S.C. app. 462(a) which states: "Precedence shall be given by courts to the trial of cases arising under this title, and such cases shall be advanced on the docket for immediate hearing, and an appeal from the decision or decree of any United States district court or the United States Court of Appeals shall take precedence over all other cases pending before the court to which the case has been referred."

In order to assure an orderly and effective enforcement of the Act, the United States Attorneys are requested specifically to pursue suitable measures, whether by appropriate motion or otherwise, to see that these cases are placed on the trial calendar on a priority basis in accordance with the Congressional mandate.

(Internal Security Division)

Appeals and Petitions for Certiorari

We note that a fairly large number of letters from United States Attorneys' offices advising the Department of adverse decisions on the appellate level are still being sent to the Criminal Division. Since the responsibility for the enforcement of the Selective Service law has been assigned to the Internal Security Division (ISD), it is essential that all such letters be sent directly to the ISD so that ample time will be had for the proper review.

It is also noted that some letters forwarding briefs and recommendations concerning appeal or petition for certiorari are not sent from United States Attorneys' offices until 10 to 15 days after the opinion has been handed down. United States Attorneys are reminded that the time limit for the filing of appeals in criminal cases in the U.S. Courts of Appeals and petitions for certiorari in the Supreme Court is 30 days from the date of the decision. It is therefore imperative that the Department be advised of any adverse decision immediately after the slip opinion has been obtained since the opinion and briefs must be reviewed by both the ISD and the Solicitor General's office.

*

(Internal Security Division)

*

the strength

ANTITRUST DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Richard W. McLaren

DISTRICT COURT

a state of the second second

¥. H. S

SHERMAN ACT

CT. RULES NO ABUSE OF GRAND JURY PROCESS AFTER $\underline{\rm IN}$ CAMERA INSPECTION.

United States v. Ross Trucking, Inc., et al. (E.D. N.Y, 70 Civil 1228; April 29, 1971; D.J. 60-166-83)

The complaint in this case, filed on September 28, 1970, charges Standard Fruit and Steamship Co. (Standard), the second largest banana importer in the nation, and Ross Trucking, Inc. (Ross), a New York trucking firm, with conspiring to require Standard's customers to use Ross' trucking services since prior to 1957, in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The complaint alleges that Standard's customers located in the New York metropolitan area have been required, as a condition of purchasing bananas from Standard, to hire Ross to cart their bananas from the Port of New York to their respective warehouses. It is alleged that Standard's customers have been precluded from using their own vehicles or those of any trucking firm other than Ross for such purpose.

The filing of the complaint was preceded by a grand jury investigation, conducted in conjunction with the Organized Crime Strike Force, which sought to determine whether Standard, Ross and others had committed criminal violations of the antitrust laws and other laws.

On December 4, 1970, Standard propounded an extensive and detailed set of interrogatories to the Government to ascertain whether the Government had abused the grand jury process by filing only a civil case after the completion of its grand jury investigation. Standard's interrogatories sought the identity of every individual employed by the Department of Justice who in any manner participated in any aspect of the instant case as well as the identity of all documents related thereto. The interrogatories also sought the date of each grand jury session and the identity of each witness who appeared before the grand jury, each grand juror, the grand jury reporter and the custodian of the grand jury transcript.

The Government's response stated that the preliminary investigation of this matter had been initiated by the New York Office of the Antitrust Division in August 1969; that the grand jury investigation was requested in September 1969 and authorized in October 1969; that the grand jury sessions were held from February 1970 to May 13, 1970; that thereafter the staff prepared a memorandum in which it summarized the evidence presented to the grand jury and set forth recommendations as to future actions; and that the Assistant Attorney General of the Antitrust Division, after reviewing the evidence developed by the grand jury, decided not to seek an indictment against the defendants but rather to proceed only by means of a civil suit. The Government objected to Standard's remaining interrogatories on the grounds that its response to Standard's interrogatories was fully sufficient and that it clearly demonstrated that no abuse of the grand jury process had occurred. It also asserted that any additional disclosure would unnecessarily jeopardize the secrecy of the grand jury proceedings and divulge confidential information in the possession of the Department of Justice to the detriment of the public interest.

Thereafter, Standard moved pursuant to Rule 37(a)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, for an order compelling additional answers to its interrogatories and objected that the Government's partial response had not been made through officials at the highest level of authority in the Department of Justice.

The Government opposed the motion on grounds similar to those stated in its initial response. It also offered to submit its supporting internal memoranda to the court for an <u>in camera</u> inspection to confirm that there had been no abuse of the grand jury process.

Oral argument on the motion was held on April 9, 1971 before Judge Joseph C. Zavatt of the Eastern District of New York. Judge Zavatt directed the Government to submit its supporting internal memoranda to the court for an <u>in camera</u> inspection on or before April 30, 1971. He also ordered the Government to answer only four of the defendant Standard's interrogatories, those which asked for: the identity of each individual who assisted in the preparation of the complaint; the date and location of each draft of the complaint; identification of all writings relied upon in answering these interrogatories; and the identity of all individuals who participated in or were consulted concerning the preparation of these answers. Answers to these four interrogatories were served and filed on April 29, 1971.

In a memorandum decision dated April 29, 1971, Judge Zavatt denied the defendant's motion (with exception of the aforementioned four interrogatories) on the ground that there was no abuse of the grand jury process and directed that the documents previously submitted to the court for in camera inspection be held by the court under seal pending possible appeal on this issue by the defendants.

*

*

Staff: Ralph T. Giordano, Charles J. Walsh and Erwin L. Atkins (Antitrust Division)

4-1-144

*

CRIMINAL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Will Wilson

COURTS OF APPEALS

<u>_</u>

÷

140.

×.

NARCOTICS AND DANGEROUS DRUGS

ACTIVITIES PROSCRIBED BY 21 U.S.C. 331(q)(2) and 331(q)(3) DO NOT CONSTITUTE SINGLE OFFENSE.

<u>United States v. Marvin M. Holtzman</u> (C. A. 7, No. 18252; April 9, 1971; D. J. 12-23-821)

In early 1968, Marvin M. Holtzman, on three separate occasions, sold a total of 9,000 amphetamine pills through an intermediary to an undercover Federal agent. A jury convicted Holtzman of illegally possessing and selling stimulant drugs (21 U.S.C. 331(q)(2), (3)). He was given consecutive one-year sentences on each of two sales counts and three years probation on a sales count and three possession counts (to run concurrently after completion of the consecutive sentences). On appeal, Holtzman claimed, among other things, that unlawful possession of a depressant or stimulant drug and unlawful sale of such a drug constitute "one overall activity" and thus a single offense. The Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals disagreed. The Court noted that 21 U.S.C. 331(q)(2) requires proof of a sale, delivery or other disposition, while 21 U.S.C. 331(q)(3) requires proof that possession is other than lawful. The Court pointed out that one can lawfully possess depressants or stimulants but still sell them illegally. On the other hand, the Court noted, one can unlawfully possess depressants or stimulants without actually selling them. 21 U.S.C. 331(q)(2) and 331(q)(3) thus require proof of different facts. Accordingly, the Court held that the activities proscribed by these sections constitute separate offenses and are punishable as such. The Holtzman decision should have application to the similar "possession", "sale" provisions of the new Controlled Substances Act, see 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1), 844.

Staff: United States Attorney William J. Bauer and Assistant United States Attorney John Peter Lulinski (N. D. Ill.)

WHITE SLAVE TRAFFIC ACT

CONVICTION ON WHITE SLAVE TRAFFIC ACT CHARGE SUS-TAINED. NO ERROR IN DIST. CT.'S QUASHING OF SUBPOENAS ISSUED TO GRAND JURY FOR PURPOSE OF IMPEACHING COMPLAINING WIT-NESS' TESTIMONY. OTHER CLAIMS OF TRIAL ERRORS REJECTED. United States v. Eli Jenkins (C. A. 5, April 23, 1971; D. J. 165-17m-74)

Eli Jenkins, a practicing lawyer in St. Petersburg, Florida, was convicted by a jury on a one count indictment charging a violation of 18 U.S.C. 2422, in that he knowingly induced a woman to travel in interstate commerce by common carrier for the purpose of prostitution or debauchery, etc. Sentenced to four years and a fine of \$5,000, he appealed. The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed in an exhaustive opinion which rejected all of the defendant's contentions.

The Government showed that Jenkins had urged the victim, a commercial prostitute, to return by train with him to St. Petersburg from Atlanta, Georgia, where he had met her on a weekend football excursion, to answer charges of grand larceny pending against her there. Jenkins offered to represent her in the case in return for her services as a prostitute to Jenkins and his law partner. During the discussion in Atlanta, Jenkins introduced the prostitute to the committing magistrate who had signed the warrant, also a member of the weekend excursion group, who in turn urged her to return to Florida, assuring her of Jenkins' outstanding ability. She at first refused, but later, after Jenkins had departed, did go back to St. Petersburg by plane.

At a preliminary hearing on the grand larceny charges, before a magistrate other than the one she had met in Atlanta, argument became heated and the judge and counsel retired to chambers. Jenkins then emerged and told the victim she would have to go to bed with the judge and the prosecutor in order to get the charge dismissed. The opinion observes tersely, "She agreed. The case was dismissed." There was also evidence that Jenkins had negotiated other "dates", one with a justice of the peace before whom she was charged with a traffic offense, and had attempted to establish her with two other prostitutes and three men in a house where the girls would pursue their profession while the men used the house as a base to burglarize homes in the neighborhood.

The sordid details were revealed when the victim, having tried without success to obtain money from several of the persons involved in this affair to pay for the birth of a baby she was expecting, was threatened with violence by Jenkins and his partner and went first to the police, whose only advice to her was to get out of town, and then to the sheriff, who directed her to the FBL

The Fifth Circuit opinion, in affirming the conviction, evidences its displeasure at the tawdry legal tactics of the defendant and sweepingly rejects all of the defendant's claims of error by both the court and prosecutor, most of which need not be recounted here. As to two of such claims, however,

J.

.

the court's holdings are of interest. As to the claim that the trial court erred in quashing subpoenas issued to six of the Federal grand jurors who had indicted him, the purpose of which was to use their testimony to impeach the complaining witness in lieu of a transcript of her grand jury testimony which was not recorded, the Court of Appeals observed that there was no showing of a particularized need, as is required before disclosure of grand jury proceedings may be permitted. The Court noted that the defendant had been provided with several prior statements of the witness, investigative files, and a state grand jury transcript; in such circumstances the Court was unable to perceive how the prosecution was advantaged over the defense.

The other point of interest was the court's ruling on whether the defendant had been prejudiced by the calling of two witnesses who the Government knew in advance would make some claim of privilege against selfincrimination. Distinguishing Namet v. United States, 373 U.S. 179, the Court noted that neither of the circumstances upon which that decision was based was present here: first, there was no conscious effort by the prosecution to build a case on the unfavorable inferences from the claim of privilege; and second, this was not a situation in which the inferences added critical weight to the Government's case in a form not subject to cross-examination. The Court noted the court's instruction to the jury admonishing them not to speculate on what any of the [refused] answers might be or to infer any incrimination from the refusals. Moreover, one of the witnesses invoking the privilege had agreed before trial to testify and the prosecutor had relied upon that assurance in making certain remarks during his opening statement, for which reason the jury would expect to hear from him; and the other witness had invoked the privilege selectively, only in respect to certain questions on direct examination and not at all in cross-examination, vigorously disclaiming any wrong-doing at all. The Court of Appeals ruled that the Government had the right to get before the jury any nonprivileged information which would corroborate the Government's case.

As can be sensed from the facts and personalities involved in this case, the decision to bring this prosecution required the United States Attorney to face up to a most unpleasant situation involving members of the Bar in his district. However, after thorough inquiry as to the facts involved and after personally assuring himself that no miscarriage of justice would result from the prosecution, and with the complete concurrence of the Criminal Division which was kept closely informed of developments, the decision was made to go forward, particularly in view of the unwillingness of local authorities to

acknowledge any wrongdoing. Indeed, the Federal prosecution was undertaken in the face of what can only be described as a complete lack of cooperation on the part of local officials, including efforts to keep the local grand jury transcript out of the Government's hands.

Staff: United States Attorney John L. Briggs and Assistant United States Attorney Bernard H. Dempsey, Jr. (M.D. Fla.)

*

*

426

ў. 1

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Shiro Kashiwa

SUPREME COURT

And the states of the

1

INDIANS

RES JUDICATA: COMPROMISE SETTLEMENTS; TRIBAL CLAIM UNDER INDIAN CLAIMS COMMISSION ACT BARRED BY PRIOR SETTLE-MENT UNDER DOCTRINE OF RES JUDICATA.

United States v. Southern Ute Indians (S. Ct., No. 515, Oct. Term, 1970; April 26, 1971; D. J. 90-2-20-537)

In 1880 the Confederated Bands of Utes, composed of the Uncompangre Utes, the White River Utes, and the Southern Utes, ceded their remaining reservation lands in Western Colorado to the United States. The ceded lands were to be sold as public lands and the net proceeds held for benefit of the Confederated Utes. Insofar as the present litigation is concerned, the central feature of the Act of June 15, 1880, 21 Stat. 199, was that the Southern Utes were to accept allotments in severalty from the southern part of the ceded lands out of a strip 15 miles wide and 110 miles long (Royce Area 617). After the allotments to the individual Southern Utes, the remainder of Royce Area 617 was to be disposed of as public lands, as were the other parts of the ceded reservation. The Southern Utes refused to accept allotments, however, and the remainder of Royce Area 617 could not be offered for sale. After further negotiations with the Southern Utes, Congress passed the Act of February 20, 1895, 28 Stat. 677. Under the terms of the 1895 Act, the western portion of Royce Area 617 was set aside as a reservation for the Southern Utes, those who desired individual allotments were granted them, and the remainder of Royce Area 617 was opened for settlement under the public land laws.

The Confederated Utes, including the Southern Utes, brought suit in the Court of Claims under the Jurisdictional Act of 1938, 52 Stat. 1029, which was settled by compromise in 1950. The consent judgment gave effect to the stipulation of the parties that "/A/ judgment * * * shall be entered in this cause as full settlement and payment for the complete extinguishment of plaintiffs' right, title, interest, estate, claims and demands of whatsoever nature in and to land and property in Western Colorado ceded by plaintiffs to defendant by the Act of June 15, 1880 * * *." (Slip Op., p.2). Shortly thereafter, the Southern Utes filed the present case before the Indian Claims Commission, asserting that the United States had violated its fiduciary duty to the Southern Utes by (1) disposing of 220,000 acres as "free homesteads" although obligated by the 1880 and 1895 Acts to sell it for the benefit of the Southern Utes, and (2) by failure to account for the proceeds of 82,000 acres which were to be held for the Southern Utes' benefit by the same Acts.

The United States raised the defense of <u>res judicata</u>, citing the 1950 compromise settlement. Both the Indian Claims Commission and the Court of Claims rejected this defense on the grounds that the lands in question were not ceded by the Act of June 15, 1880, but by the Act of February 20, 1895. The Supreme Court reversed, holding that the land had been ceded by the 1880 Act. The Court reviewed the long history of the case but could find no basis for holding that the United States had waived the cession under the 1880 Act or that the 1895 Act was in derogation of the cession made under the 1880 Act.

The Supreme Court noted that the Court of Claims had once returned this case to the Commission for further hearings with respect to the intention of the parties on the meaning of the 1950 compromise stipulation. The Supreme Court questioned the propriety of such a proceeding, but made no determination, since the Court of Claims had made no ruling based on the intention of the parties.

Justice Douglas was the only dissenter. He thought the case turned on purely factual determinations and therefore the findings of the two lower tribunals should have been affirmed because supported by the record.

Staff: Lawrence G. Wallace (Solicitor General's Office) and Ralph A. Barney (Land and Natural Resources Division)

DISTRICT COURT

INDIANS

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS APPLICABLE TO CLAIMS BY INDIANS AGAINST UNITED STATES.

Horton Capoeman v. United States (C.Cl., No. 524-69; April 16, 1971; D.J. 90-1-23-1529)

Plaintiff, a Quinault Indian, sued to recover charges made by the Government as deductions from the proceeds of a sale by it, as trustee, of timber on plaintiff's restricted trust allotment. Plaintiff contended that the deduction by the Government of the charges for the administrative expenses of the sale violated the Government's obligation and agreement under the General Allotment Act to convey the allotment to plaintiff in fee, free of all charges, incumbrance, etc., at the termination of the restrictions.

.**\$**..'

* . -{

Š.

7

Both plaintiff and defendant moved for summary judgment. In addition to its contentions on the merits that among other things the charge was expressly authorized by an Act of Congress, 25 U.S.C. 406 <u>et seq</u>, the Government contended the action was barred by the six-year statute of limitations, 28 U.S.C. 2501.

The plaintiff made three arguments in opposition to the statute of limitations defense. Plaintiff argued (1) that since he is a restricted Indian whose property is held in trust for him by the United States, the statute does not commence to run until the trust has been terminated or repudiated; (2) that since he is a restricted Indian, plaintiff is "noncompetent" and the statute does not start to run until his "disability" has been removed; and (3) that in a consistent line of tax cases against the United States, the courts have recognized that the bar of the statute of limitations does not run against restricted Indians.

The court granted the Government's motion for summary judgment, rejecting all of plaintiff's contentions. The court, in a lengthy discussion, held that the statute commenced to run as soon as the deductions were made and the proceeds accounted for by the United States; that the restricted status of plaintiff, which exists solely because the United States holds property in trust for him, is not such a "disability" and plaintiff is not such a "noncompetent" as to toll the statute; and finally, the court distinguished the tax cases by pointing out that there, the Federal official responsible for making the claims for refund of taxes on Indian property, which was not subject to tax, paid the taxes and, therefore, was involved in "something akin" to a conflict of interest.

Staff: Herbert Pittle (Land and Natural Resources Division)

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW

DIST. CT. WILL NOT INTERFERE WITH AN ADMINISTRATIVE BODY'S RULINGS ON EVIDENCE IN AN ACTION BROUGHT WHILE AD-MINISTRATIVE HEARING REMAINS IN PROGRESS.

Lloyd Harbor Study Group, Inc., v. <u>Glenn T. Seaborg, et al.</u> (E. D. N.Y., No. 70 C 1253; April 2, 1971; D.J. 90-1-4-256)

As a party to a hearing before an Atomic Safety and Licensing Board, plaintiff sought to introduce evidence relating to general environmental matters. The Board rejected the offer, taking the position that it would not hear evidence in connection with any nonradiological environmental effects of the proposed power plant. Its ruling was upheld in administrative appeals, including an appeal to the Atomic Energy Commission. (A recent regulation of the Atomic Energy Commission authorizes consideration of nonradiological environmental matters in future hearings but exempts from this ruling projects already in the hearing stage.) This action was then instituted, asking the court to direct the Board to hear the proffered evidence. The State of New York intervened on behalf of the plaintiff.

On April 2, 1971, the court sustained a motion to dismiss filed on behalf of the members of the Atomic Energy Commission. For related cases wherein appellate courts have refused to intervene with respect to evidentiary issues in Atomic Safety and Licensing Board hearings, see <u>Thermal Ecology Must Be Preserved v. Atomic Energy Commission</u>, 433 F. 2d 524 (C. A. D. C. 1970); <u>Thermal Ecology Must Be Preserved v. Atomic Energy Commission (C. A. 7, No. 18687, August 24, 1970).</u>

Staff: Thomas L. McKevitt (Land and Natural Resources Division)

ENVIRONMENT

QUI TAM ACTION FOR RECOVERY OF FINES NOT AUTHORIZED BY RIVERS AND HARBORS ACT.

United States, Qui Tam, George C. Matthews v. Florida-Vanderbilt Corporation, et al. (S.D. Fla., No. 71-369-CA; D.J. 90-1-4-304)

The Southern District of Florida has joined the growing number of jurisdictions which have held that the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899, 33 U.S.C. 401 <u>et seq.</u>, does not provide a basis for an action by an informer, the qui tam action. Suit was brought by an individual against a waterfront condominium developer in Naples, Florida, along with the District Engineer for the Jacksonville District of the Corps of Engineers and the Director of the Florida Department of Air and Water Pollution Control. The complaint alleged that dredge and fill activities of the developer constituted violations of 33 U.S.C. 407 (the Refuse Act), and demanded half of the resulting fines as provided in 33 U.S.C. 411. Relief was sought against the District Engineer and the Director for failure to prevent or to prosecute the violations.

Upon motion of the State of Florida, Judge C. Clyde Atkins dismissed the complaint for failure to state a claim upon which relief could be granted. Judge Atkins, in a thorough opinion, held that a qui tam action must have express statutory authorization. Since 33 U.S.C. 4ll gives an informer a right to half of the fines only after the Attorney General authorizes a criminal proceeding, a conviction has been obtained, and a fine imposed, no authorization

والإيدارين المراجب

can be found in that statute for a qui tam action. The informer's rights are dependent upon the intervening exercise of discretionary actions of too many people.

*

*

2

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney George A. Kokus (S.D. Fla.) and Kenneth F. Hoffman (formerly of the Land and Natural Resources Division)

*

.

<u>TAX DIVISION</u> Assistant Attorney General Johnnie M. Walters

COURT OF APPEALS

SUMMONS ENFORCEMENT PROCEEDINGS

CT. HOLDS SUMMARY SHOW CAUSE PROCEDURES PROPER TO ENFORCE SUMMONSES; TAXPAYER UNDER INVESTIGATION PRECLUDED FROM INTERVENING, PARTICIPATING IN ANY WAY AT ANY STAGE OF SUMMONS PROCESS AGAINST THIRD PARTY SUMMONED BY IRS TO TESTIFY OR PRODUCE RECORDS.

United States and Special Agent James M. Bittman v. Newman, et al. (C. A. 5, No. 28046; April 14, 1971, ____ F.2d ___)

These are three consolidated summons enforcement proceedings brought against third parties summoned by a Special Agent of the Internal Revenue Service to produce records concerning the correctness of the tax returns of the taxpayer-intervenor, Donald A. Pollack. Upon the petition of the United States and the affidavit, the district court issued orders to show cause to the third-party respondents. One respondent objected to the summary show cause procedures and demanded a plenary trial including discovery. In addition the taxpayer applied to intervene. The district court denied the application for discovery and after a show cause hearing, enforced the summonses. However, the district court permitted the taxpayer to intervene and accorded him a full panoply of surveillance privileges when the third parties appeared before the Special Agent to testify and produce.

The respondents and the taxpayer noted an appeal reasserting their stock challenges to the issuance and use of the summons. The United States cross-appealed challenging the allowance of intervention and the granting of surveillance privileges.

The Court of Appeals affirmed the enforcement of the summonses; affirmed the denial of discovery; specifically endorsed the employment of summary show cause procedures by the district court; reversed the district court's order permitting intervention and the allowance of surveillance privileges to the taxpayer. The Court held that the use of a summons in aid of an Internal Revenue Service investigation is part of an inquisitorial process, not accusatory, which should not be frustrated or stultified by intervention or surveillance.

Staff: George F. Lynch, John P. Burke and John M. Dowd (Tax Division)

*

*

.

¥ -